SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 2, 2013
2:07 p.m

2:07: 55 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

David Livingstone, Mnaging Director, CITI Corp; Pat Kenp,
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities; Verne Rupright, Myor, Cty of Wasilla; Heather
Shat t uck, Staff, Senator Pete Kelly; WIlliam Streur,
Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and Social Services;
Angela Rodell, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Treasury Division,
Departnent of Revenue; Deven Mtchell, Executive D rector,
Al aska  Muni ci pal Bond Bank Authority, Department  of
Revenue; Representative Mke Chenault; Valerie Davidson,
Al aska Native Tribal Health Consortium Flora Roddy, Self,
Fai r banks.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Larry Devilbiss, Myor, Mtanuska-Susitna Borough; Dan
Sullivan, Mayor, Anchorage; Berkley Tilton, President,
Kni k- Fai rview Community Council, Wsilla; Darcie Salnon,
Assenbl yman, Mat-Su; Lincoln Bean, Chair, Alaska Native
Heal t h Board, Anchorage.



SUMVARY
SB 13 KNI K ARM BRI DGE AND TCOLL AUTHORI TY

SB 13 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 48 PERS CONTRI BUTI ONS BY MUNI Cl PALI TI ES
SB 48 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
SB 88 ALASKA NATI VE MEDI CAL CENTER HOUSI NG

SB 88 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 30(FIN)
STATE AGENCY PERFORMANCE AUDI TS

CS HB 30 (FIN) was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

#sb13
SENATE BI LL NO. 13

"An Act relating to bonds of the Knik Arm Bridge and
Toll Authority; relating to reserve funds of the
authority; relating to taxes and assessnents on a
person that is a party to an agreenment wth the
authority; and establishing the Knik Arm Crossing
fund. "

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough |ooked at slide 16 of the PowerPoint,
"Kni k Arm Crossing, Financial Briefing” (copy on file). She
remarked that the Resource Conmttee had conversations with
the Departnent of Revenue (DOR) regarding noral obligation
of the state. She shared that she was led to believe that
if the bonding agencies |ooked at Alaska and the noral
obligation, it would be noved to a debt owed by the State
of Al aska. She requested a conmment regarding her
under st andi ng of "noral obligation."

DAVI D LI VI NGSTONE, MANAG NG DI RECTOR, CITI CORP, responded
that her assunptions were correct. He furthered that a
straight noral obligation, with no offsetting revenues,
woul d be analogous as a debt to the state. He shared that
Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA) would use
availability paynents that were backed by the state's nora

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



obligation. He furthered that the paynents woul d be reduced
by toll revenues, which would reduce how the rating
agencies wuld view the noral obligation. The rating
agencies would assunme that the toll revenues would reduce
the state's obligation to pay. He remarked that he had
| ooked at the toll revenues in a variety of sensitivities,
and felt that the rating agencies would inpact the state's
rating.

Senator Oson |ooked at slide 9, and requested an
expl anation of the factor of 1.5 percent. M. Livingstone
replied that C Tl financed projects based on traffic and
revenue studies. He remarked that he exam ned the studies
to determne the accuracy of the projections. He stressed
that predicting the future is never precise, but pointed
out that he had analyzed approximately 10 studies for
traffic and revenues. He explained that there was an equal
nunber of traffic above and traffic below, and generally
they were all within 10 or 15 percent of projections. He
felt that the projections were fairly accurate.

Senator dson remarked that the Transportation Resource
Board found that the estinates were too optimstic. M.
Livingstone replied that he was wunfamliar wth that
anal ysis, and furthered that he financed projects based on
studi es prepared by CDM Snit h.

2:15: 01 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered how the proposal would
control cost. M. Livingstone responded that there were a
nunber of reasons why the proposal provided a |ower cost.
He stated that the normal procurenent would hire an
engineering firm bid to contractors; and there my be
change orders. He stressed that the engineering firm would
hire a contractor to both design and construct the project.
This alleviates the potential for design and construction
di sagreenents. He stressed that he the construction costs
for simlar projects that separated contracting and design
firme were significantly greater than the owners' initial
estimates. He felt that using one firmfor both contracting
and design woul d decrease cost.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered what the bank's risk would
be related to the Endangered Species Act. She stressed that
Alaska was holding the risk wunder the paynents. She
wondered how the risk was weighted, when the federa

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



listing was beyond control. She pointed out that there were
daily risks related to earthquakes and other natural
di sasters, but remarked that the federal governnent used
specific science to list specific species as "endangered."
M. Livingstone responded that there were wildlife surveys
that were conpleted in the Knik Arm and along the right-
of -way. He remarked that the beluga whale was an endangered
species. He stressed that there were nmany conversations
bet ween KABATA and the federal governnment regarding how the
bri dge should be built to mnimze the inpact on the beluga
whal es.

Senator Hoffman |ooked at slide 12, "Revenue Sensitivity
Results from Monte Carlo Sinulations.” He wondered if the
slide represented the total revenue for 45 years with a
downside of $5 billion with an aggressive upside of $9
billion. M. Livingstone replied in the affirmative, and
furthered that the results were fornulated by an outside
firm CDM Smth.

Senator Hoffrman queried the nunbers derivation of the
represented scenarios. He wondered if the toll charges were
constant or fixed under each scenario, and wondered if the
set toll would be in place for 45 years. M. Livingstone
replied that that the scenarios took into account both the
traffic and the toll rate. He remarked that the sane toll
rate was assunmed for each scenario.

Senator Hoffman queried the toll rate. M. Livingstone
replied that the toll rate started at $5 per passenger car,
wth a lower rate for notorcycles and a greater rate for
trucks. This rate would start upon bridge opening in 2016
He pointed out that the rate would increase with inflation
by approximtely 2 percent.

2:21: 07 PM

Senat or Hof fman wondered who would nake the final
determnation of rate increase. M. Livingstone replied
that the KABATA Board would make that final decision. He
stressed that the projections were based on assuned
inflation. He pointed out that it would be assuned that the
rate would not be increased, if that particular vyear
experienced no inflation.

Senator Hoffrman asked if the board had the authority to
raise the rate higher than inflation, if there was a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



downside. M. Livingstone responded that the KABATA Board
had the discretion to increase the toll rates at any tine.

Senat or Hoffrman | ooked at slide 14, "Sensitivity Results.”
He asked for further detail of the severe downside and
aggressive upside under the five different scenarios. M

Li vingstone replied that the state had the initial funding
of $150 mllion in the reserve. He remarked that the state
woul d be asked to appropriate $627 mllion over tinme in the
aggressive upside. He stated that the $627 mllion would
allow for no requests until 2025. The first request would
be $8.9 mllion in 2025, and the largest request in any
year would be $37.5 million in 2044. He furthered that, in
the aggregate, the total appropriation requests, over tine,
woul d be $627 mllion. He explained that the total state
l[iability would be $777 million. He stated that late in
their analysis, the project would generate revenues in
excess of the expenses at a total of $910 mllion that
woul d be returned to the state to fund other transportation
needs across the state. He stressed that the project would
generate $133 million for the state.

Senator Hoffman |ooked at slide 12, and surmised that it
represented total revenues over 45 years of slightly under
$5 billion. M. Livingstone agreed, and furthered that the
proj ections assumed that KABATA and the state would expand
the bridge as traffic warrants. He declared that the noney
for expansions was included in the scenarios. He renmarked
that the state had the option to defer the cost assunptions
for expansion, but stressed that the downside would cause
much nore congested on the bridge.

2:25: 55 PM

Senator O son |ooked at slide 4, and queried an exanple of
the state's liability. M. Livingstone responded with slide
6, and pointed out the specific events. He stated that
there was a contract between KABATA and the private partner
that held 21 events. He explained that there were two types
of "unforeseen surface conditions", but he only l|isted one
on the list. He stressed that KABATA was not taking a
"blind risk" with this project. He pointed out that there
were various extensive studies that were used as
information with the private partner.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Senat or A son wondered if the state would be liable for the
risk, if the project fails. M. Livingstone deferred to the
Department of Law (DQL).

PAT KEMP, COW SS| ONER, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND
PUBLI C FACI LI TIES, introduced hinsel f.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if Conm ssioner Kenp had any
testinmony that he would like to share. Conm ssioner Kenp
expl ai ned that the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOT/PF) was not privy to nuch of the shared
information regardi ng KABATA. He explained that he was on
t he KABATA Board; DOI/PF had sub-recipient rights from the
federal governnent; and worked w th KABATA regarding right-
of -way. He stressed that he was not an expert regarding the
details with their reports.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if Alaska had ever had a
Public/Private Partnership (PPP) Conm ssioner Kenp replied
that DOI/ PF had never done a PPP, but furthered that there
may be PPP for the road to Anbler. He stressed that DOI/ PF
did not do the PPP financing, bit nostly focused on the
engi neering and environnental issues related to preparing a
proj ect .

2:32:34 PM

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if there were any suggestions
regarding the liability concerns. He wondered if the bridge
belonged to the state or KABATA. Conm ssioner Kenp
responded that sight conditions were the responsibility of
KABATA, but deferred nost of the liability concerns to DOL.
He remarked that the contractor does the geotechnical work,
so sone liability may fall to the contractor

Senator Bishop asked for a restatenent of DOI/PF s
participation in the project. Conmm ssioner Kenp replied
t hat KABATA was the sub-recipient of federal highway funds,
so DOT/PF had no oversight until the environnment docunent
was conplete. He furthered that the federal highway program
turned the project over to DOI/PF to nonitor the
expendi t ur es.

Senat or Bi shop wondered who woul d provide the snow renova

for the bridge. Conm ssioner Kenp replied that KABATA woul d
provi de the snow renoval

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer wondered if DOI/PF was responsible for the
roads that were attached to the bridge. Comm ssioner Kenp
responded that DOTI/PF woul d be responsi ble for those roads.

Senator Dunl eavy understood that this project proposal was
unique in Al aska, but pointed out that there were many toll
roads and bridges in other parts of the United States. He
felt that there could be insurance that mght deal wth
liability concerns.

Senator O son stressed that the project may not vyield
enough revenue, because of the small popul ation in Al aska.

2:37: 36 PM

Senator O son noted that Conm ssioner Kenp's background was
in surface transportation. He wondered if bedrock drilling
was a concern. Conm ssioner Kenp responded that he hoped
t he geotechnical work would be done properly. He furthered
that the requirenents include an exploratory hole for every
pi er.

Senator O son wondered iif earthquakes were a concern.
Comm ssioner Kenp responded that there were nethods that
were used to design around the potential for an earthquake,
but stressed that he was not famliar with the geology
around the bridge.

Senator Bishop shared that he felt that there was
technology to ensure that bridges could wthstand
eart hquakes.

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried the estimated cost of the
road from both sides of the bridge. Comm ssioner Kenp
responded that the Mat-Su side was approximately $150 to
$200 million, and the Anchorage side was approxi mtely $250
mllion.

Co- Chair Meyer wondered who would pay for the cost of those
roads. M. Livingstone replied that the excess toll and
federal aid would pay for those roads.

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough understood that paynments would not be
due until 2025, and wondered if the conpletion date for
traffic would be 2025. Conm ssioner Kenp did not know the
answer .

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that it was inportant to
under stand the paynent plan for the project.

Senator O son remarked that he heard M. Livingstone state
that the bridge would be open in 2016. The comm ttee nodded
in affirmtion.

2:42: 58 PM

LARRY DEVILBISS, MAYOR,  MATANUSKA-SUSI TNA BOROUGH (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 13. He shared
that every mayor in the Mt-Su borough supported the
project. He remarked that the bridge would open a w ndow to
40 percent of the Kenai borough. He shared that the inpact
of KABATA to the Mat-Su borough would be extrenely
positive. He stated that the fasted denographic in the Mat-
Su borough was very near where the bridge would be built,
and he stressed that the population growh was placing
stress on that area. He remarked that the Mat-Su borough
was anticipating the project by laying out two separate
town sites near the landing of the bridge. He shared that
there were already discussions regarding a new mddle
school and high school near the bridge. He felt that the
consequences of not building a bridge would be "horrific."

Senator O son wondered if the Mat-Su was contributing any
noney for the project. Mayor Devilbiss replied that there
were sone corporations wthin the Mit-Su that were
contributing. He furthered that there was sonme |ocal noney
that would be used for road infrastructure on the WMat-Su
side. He shared that the Mat-Su borough passed a $60
mllion road-bond package in the year prior, which the
state matched.

Senator O son stressed that the legislature was trying to
avoid the problens that were created fromthe Mt-Su Ferry,
which was a previously proposed project. Mayor Devilbiss
felt that the current project was nmuch different than the
ferry.

2:48: 38 PM

DAN  SULLI VAN, MAYOR, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 13. He announced that he had
supported KABATA for nmany years. The bridge was first
proposed in 1959. He remarked that there was currently only
one route between the two nobst populated areas of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



state. He felt that it was inperative to expand the access
bet ween Anchorage and the Mat-Su borough. He furthered that
18,000 to 20,000 daily comuters used the denn H ghway. He
stressed that there were nultiple times in the wnter
nonths when that highway is closed, either due to a car
accident or weather. He felt that limting those comuters
with only one access did not nake |ogistical sense. He
shared that the Port of Anchorage was a very inportant hub
to the rest of Alaska. The bridge would allow for the
container trucks to avoid downtown Anchorage, which would
alleviate much of the congestion that already plagued
Anchorage. He stressed that 1000 to 1500 jobs would be
created with this project.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if there was a concern about
property taxes being reduced if the bridge was built. Mayor
Sullivan replied that the growh in the Mat-Su was al ready
occurring.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if there were 18,000 to
20,000 daily conmuters between the Mat-Su and Anchorage.
Mayor Sullivan replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered what percentage of those
commuters were "hauling |oads."” Myor Sullivan replied that
nost of the trucks were driving north and then returning to
Anchorage enpty. He agreed to provide further information.

Vice-Chair Fairclough felt that the trucks would be nore
likely to use the bridge, depending on the toll rate. Mayor
Sul | i van agr eed.

2:55: 10 PM

BERKLEY TILTON, PRESIDENT, KNI K-FAI RVI EW COMWUNI TY COUNCI L,
WASI LLA (via teleconference), testified in support of SB
13. He shared that he had built roads in Al aska since 1965.
He remarked that Alaska made a conmitnent to maintain its
roads for its citizens. He felt that the project was a road
project that would benefit the entire state. He |ikened the
project to the Golden Gate Bridge, because the inpact was
extrenely inportant. He understood that the project was
expensive, but it would produce an extrenely positive
effect. He echoed Mayor Devilbiss and Myor Sullivan's
remar ks. He reiterated that t he proj ect was t he
responsibility of the state.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



2:59:28 PM

DARCI E SALMON, ASSEMBLYMAN, NMAT-SU (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SB 13. He shared that he had been the
mayor of the Mat-Su from 1997 to 2000, and was an origina
conmm ssioner for KABATA from 2003 to 2009. He felt that the
project included other economc interests including the
port at Point Mackenzie, the rail spur from Point Mickenzie
into the Interior, and the bridge from Anchorage to the
Mat-Su. He felt that those three projects would result in a
360-degree internodal transportation corridor. He felt that
the bride was essential to the economc growth of the other
two projects.

3:06:10 PM

VERNE RUPRI GHT, MAYOR, CITY OF WASI LLA, spoke in support of
SB 13. He stressed that the bridge was not only strategic
to the use and access to Al aska, but also a good investnent
for the federal governnment. He remarked that the federal
government should express a greater participation in the
project. He stressed that Wsilla was experiencing a
popul ation surge, and was the fastest population grow ng
area in the state. He felt that the bridge would sinply
give people options, as the bridge would not shorten the
distance that was already in place through the denn
H ghway.

SB 13 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb88
SENATE BILL NO. 88

"An Act authorizing the state bond commttee to issue
certificates of participation to finance t he
construction and equipping of residential housing to
serve the Anchorage canpus of the Alaska Native
Medical Center; and authorizing the Departnent of
Adm ni stration to ent er into a | ease- purchase
agreenent for the benefit of the Al aska Native Triba
Heal th Consortium"

3:13:37 PM

HEATHER SHATTUCK, STAFF, SENATOR PETE KELLY, stated that SB
88 authorized the Departnent of Admnistration to enter

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



into a |ease purchase agreement with the Alaska Native
Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC) for <construction and
equi pping of a residential housing facility to be |ocated
on the Anchorage canpus of the Al aska Native Medical Center
(ANMC). The Department of Health and Social Services and
the Alaska Tribal Health System are partners in providing
community health care services throughout Al aska.

Ms. Shattuck stated that ANMC provided conprehensive
nmedi cal services to 143,000 Alaska Native and Anerican
| ndi an people across the Alaska Native Tribal Health Care
system Patients who need nedical services beyond their
local health clinic’'s capacity are referred to ANMC for
specialty care services. Two years ago ANTHC and the
Department of Health and Social Services began identifying
ways in which working together could result in Medicaid
cost savings for the State while providing a nore robust
array of services offered within the tribal health system
The State of Al aska manages the Medicaid Program

Ms. Shattuck explained that the Federal governnent and the
State split the cost of services for nobst Medicaid patients
50/50. However, if the Medicaid patient is an Al aska
Native/ Arerican Indian and receives services in a tribal
facility, the State is reinbursed 100 percent of the cost.
The additional 50 percent reinbursement rate resulted in
significant savings to the State’s Medicaid budget. A key
el ement in providing these health care services is housing.
Famlies who travel to Anchorage for services nust have
housing to have neani ngful access to care. Wen the new
hospital was built at the Tudor Road canmpus in 1997, it
included a 54 sem-private room facility adjacent to the
hospital, the Quyana House. As demand increasingly exceeded
the current 110 bed capacity, the ANTHC began contracting
with local hotels to provide for additional rooms. Even at

increased cost, this still did not neet the demand. Senate
Bill 88 addresses the critical need for patient housing by
authorizing $35 mllion in State Revenue bonds for

construction of a 170-bed residential housing facility with
sky bridge access to ANMC

Ms. Shattuck stated that it is not surprising that housing
is an integral part of ANMC s plans to increase services in
the followng areas: Mternal Child Health/N CU expansion,
Operati ng Room Expansi on, Endoscopy, Tel enedicine Delivery,
Advanced Radiology Services, Ophthal nology, ENT, GCeneral
Surgery, U ology, Energency Services, and Physical Therapy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Patients who have housing on canpus will receive services
at ANMC rather than another healthcare facility in the
area. Those who are Medicaid eligible will save the State
General Fund dol |l ars.

Ms. Shattuck announced that SB 88 antici pates state Ceneral

Fund Medicaid savings of approxinmately $8.8 million per
year. This nunber is likely to increase over the next 10
years due to increased utilization for all health care

services provided to Alaska Natives/Anerican Indians. The
identified cost savings exceed the anmbunt needed to pay
debt service on the bond. It is a solid investnment for the
State and a good partnership outcone for the Al aska Native
Tri bal Health System

3:17: 33 PM

Co- Chai r Meyer coment ed t hat he appr eci at ed t he
possibility of cost savings related to the bill. He
understood that the premse of the bill was to provide

|l ong-term housing on the canpus for the hospitals in
Anchorage. Ms. Shattuck agreed, and furthered that there
would be a sky bridge that would connect the housing
facility with the hospital, in order to avoid the use of
taxi s on inclenment weather days.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered how it was determ ned that
$8 mllion was a fair nunmber related to the nunber of
people. M. Shattuck responded that in FY 12, Al aska paid
Providence and Alaska Regional $29 nmllion for Al aska
natives to receive care that could have been provided at
ANMC. She furthered that the Consortium hoped that, wth
i nproved access, throughput, and efficiencies, they could
save the $8.8 mllion which would translate into a 30
percent increase for those that would receive care at ANVC.

Vice-Chair Fairclough shared that she was the forner
executive director of Standing Together Against Rape
(STAR), and had worked with people who chose to go to other
nmedi cal providers for personal reasons. She wondered what
degree of certainty was available to determne if those
peopl e woul d choose to be treated at ANMC

Co-Chair Meyer remarked that the project was a Certificate

of Participation (COP), and asked for further explanation
on the funding of the project.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



3:22: 20 PM

WLLIAM STREUR, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVICES (DHSS), explained that it was not known
whet her or not an individual would choose ANMC. He stated
that when a tribal nenber is brought into Anchorage, and
boarded at a hotel, that individual would tend to seek
treatment where they feel inclined. He felt that housing an
i ndi vi dual near ANMC, they wuld obtain easier and
accessi bl e treatnment.

Vi ce- Chair Fai rcl ough felt t hat one-third was a
conservative estimate, and appreciated that conservative
esti mate.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the facility contained 150 beds.
Comm ssioner Streur replied that the facility would contain
170 beds.

Senator Bishop wondered if part of the savings would be
because of the lack of contracting line. Comm ssioner
Streur responded that the $8.8 nmillion was only related to
heal th care cost savings.

Senator Bishop comented that the project seened like a
smart option.

3:26: 45 PM

Co-Chair Kelly requested nore information regarding savings
related difficult pregnancies. Conmm ssioner Streur asked
for more clarification.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that he had conversations regarding
savings related to difficult pregnancies. Comr ssioner
Streur responded that the project would allow for early
term pregnant wonen for prenatal services, would increase
the chances for a nornmal delivery and a heal thy baby.

Co-Chair Kelly surmsed that nmuch of the prenatal care
occurred at Providence. Comm ssioner Streur responded in
the affirmative.

Co-Chair Kelly queried the per-night cost for a stay at

Provi dence versus at ANMC. Comm ssioner Streur agreed to
provide that information, but stressed that the high costs

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



were related to the length of time in the neo-nata
i ntensive care unit.

Senat or Dunleavy wondered if there was a study for the
hotels in the area related to the inpact on their business.
Comm ssioner Streur responded that he was unaware of any
such study.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the fiscal note was prepared by
DHSS. Comm ssioner Streur responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the fiscal reflected a savings
for DHSS, with a fund source of federal receipts. He asked
for nmore information on the fiscal note. Conm ssioner
Streur explained that the fiscal note was a zero fiscal
note, because the federal receipts wuld be offset by
i ncreased federal receipts to offset the general fund (GF).

3:31:59 PM

ANGELA RODELL, DEPUTY COW SSIONER, TREASURY Dl VI SION
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, introduced herself.

DEVEN M TCHELL, EXECUTIVE D RECTOR, ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL BOND
BANK AUTHCORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, introduced hinself.

Co-Chair Meyer requested information related to the COP.
M. Mtchell responded that the COP was nore conplicated
that past COPs, because of the conplex partnerships. He
expl ained that there would be a ground | ease established on
the property, with a sky bridge to ANMC, and a parking
garage built adjacent to the parcel property. He stated
that there would be a facility |lease for the structure. He
expl ained that the two | eases would be granted to a trustee
bank, that the state appoints. That trustee bank would then
lease the facility back to the state, and the |ease
paynents would be fractionalized into $5,000 blocks of
participation in the lease, and sold to third party
investors at varying interest rates, depending on how | ong
the noney is given. He stated that paynents nade under the
| ease would be matched by the trustee and the repaynent of
those investors over 15 years.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered who would own the building after
the 15 years. M. Mtchell responded that the state would
own the facility during the termof the |ease, and after 15
years ANTHC would own the facility.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough surmsed that the stated would issue
the COP bonds, the state would nmake the paynments on the
bonds, and the state would turn over ownership to ANTHC
M. Mtchell responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that the paynment for the bonds cane
from the 100 percent Medicaid match. He furthered that the
delta from the 100 percent match came for these particular
patients, rather than the 50 percent for a "normal"
Medi cai d patient.

M. Mtchell noted that the DOR fiscal note had an
estimati on of $415,000 needed to issue the COPs for rating
agenci es, bond council, financial advisory services, and
other required services in order to structure and issue the
publicly offered debt. He explained that the bill
contenplated $35 mllion from the proceeds of the COPs for
the project. He stated that the DOR fiscal note indicated
that $415, 000 would cone fromthe COPs to pay for the cost
of issuance. He felt that it was commobn at the |ocal |eve

for general obligation bond issues, and the additional
funding was realized by selling the bond at the prem um

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered why the funding nmethod was
chosen for the facility construction. M. M t chel
responded that COPs were often used in building
construction.

3:38:23 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried the estimate of the cost of
the sky bridge. M. Rodell replied that the cost was
included in the $35 nmillion, was did not know what portion.

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried the actual cost of the
project w thout the debt service. M. Mtchell replied that
$35 mllion was the amount of the COP, which was the
project fund deposit. He furthered that there could be an
additional interest earnings on the project fund of
$150, 000, which was the state's anticipated contribution.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough surmsed that there was 2.75 interest
rate calculated for 15 years included in the package. She
felt that there ought to be a lower estimate than $35
mllion, because the state was paying an outside entity for
the project. M. Mtchell responded that the total paynents

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



would be estimted $42 mllion, after the interest
differential. Vs. Rodel | furthered that the other
alternative was cash, so there would be a 1 percent
earnings estimte on G-

M. Mtchell stressed that the project was not proposed by
the adm ni stration.

Senator Hoffman shared that there were two other assisted
living projects in Bethel and Kotzebue that focused on
Medicaid cost savings to the state that were funded
conpletely wth cash. He stressed that the long-term
savings for those centers and the proposed project would
occur exponentially.

3:43: 05 PM

VALERI E DAVI DSON, ALASKA NATIVE TRI BAL HEALTH CONSORTI UM

testified in support of SB 88. She stressed that the ANTHC
had a positive inmpact on the native communities across the
state. She stressed that Al aska benefited from various
types of care that ANTHC provided, including inmunizations.

She shared that ANTHC was often the only nedical provider
in rural Al aska. She shared that ANTHC was not solely
geared toward natives. She stated that the Veterans
Adm nistration entered into agreenments wth the tribal

health organizations in Alaska, recognizing that the
Veterans Admnistration would also benefit by having the
tribal health systens provide services, so they would not
be required to build infrastructure in rural Al aska. She
stressed that the state did not build the additional

infrastructure in Al aska, because the tribal health systens
provided the health care. She shared that the average
village size in Alaska was approximtely 300 people, so
sonet i mes services wer e limted beyond t he | oca

community's capacity to provide care. Wen that occurred,
patients were referred to one of six regional hospitals
| ocated throughout the state: Barrow, Bethel, D llingham
Kot zebue, None, and Sitka. She stressed that those
hospital s provided incredible services, but there were sone
services that required people to be transferred to
Anchorage to ANMC. She shared that nore than half of the
peopl e that receive services at ANMC travel from outside
Anchorage in order to access health care services. She
shared sone stories of patients who benefitted from health
care at ANMC

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough supported the concept of the bill.
She queried the construction cost. M. Davidson replied
that the cost of construction and facilitating would be $35
mllion. She furthered that the cost of the sky bridge
woul d be $2 million.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if a contractor had been
sel ected. Ms. Davidson responded that a contractor had not
yet been sel ected.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the project would fall
under the state procurenent code. M. Davidson stated that
she was not confortable responding to that question.

Vice-Chair Fairclough expressed was not sure why the
project was using borrowed funds, rather than using capital
f unds.

Co- Chair Meyer responded that there was an anticipation of
savings to the operating budget over the 15 year period,
Wi t hout needed to provide $35 million i mediately.

3:57:22 PM

LI NCOLN BEAN, CHAI R, ALASKA NATIVE HEALTH BOARD, ANCHORAGE
(via tel econference), spoke in support of SB 88. He stated
that the Alaska Native Health Board was a statew de
organi zation, which represented 25 health providers that
deliver health care in nearly every community in Al aska.
Wen needed care was beyond the |ocal assistance, the
patients were sent to Anchorage.

FLORA RODDY, SELF, FAIRBANKS, testified in support of SB
88. She shared a story about her grandson's health issue
She remarked that the project would provide necessary
assistance to many individuals, |ike her grandson.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

4:02: 58 PM

Co- Chai r Kelly stressed that the native population
currently received a 50 percent Medicaid reinbursenent,
when they receive care at non-tribal hospitals. He stated
that it was inportant for those natives to receive care
fromthe tribal hospitals, in order to receive 100 percent

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



Medi cai d rei nbursenment. He stated that SB 88 could provide
significant savings in the Medicaid budget.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed with Co-Chair Kelly, and asked for
nore information regarding the financing of the project.
Ms. Rodell responded that there were discussions regarding
mai nt ai ni ng savi ngs, and capturing t he identified
popul ation. She stated that the housing nechanism could
benefit the system She furthered Conm ssioner Streur was
skepti cal of the anmpbunt of savings, so there were
significant estimte decreases, and how nuch noney coul d be
| everaged into a bond transacti on.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if it was a good tinme to invest.
Ms. Rodell replied that there were currently historically
| ow rates.

4:10: 03 PM
AT EASE

4:10:10 PM
RECONVENED

SB 88 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#hb30
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 30(FIN)

"An Act relating to performance reviews, audits, and
termnation of executive and legislative branch
agencies, the University of Al aska, and the Al aska
Court System and providing for an effective date.”

CSHB 30(FI'N) was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

#sb48
SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act requiring each municipality with a popul ation
that decreased by nore than 25 percent between 2000
and 2010 that participates in the defined benefit plan
of the Public Enployees' Retirenment System of Al aska
to contribute to the system an anount cal cul ated by
applying a rate of 22 percent of the total of all base
salaries paid by the municipality to enployees of the
muni ci pality who are active nenbers of the system

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



during a payroll period; reducing the rate of interest
payable by a nunicipality with a population that
decreased by nore than 25 percent between 2000 and
2010 that is delinquent in transmtting enployee and
enpl oyer contributions to the defined benefit plan of
the Public Enployees' Retirement System of Al aska;
giving retrospective effect to the substantive
provisions of the Act; and providing for an effective
date."

SB 48 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD

#

ADJ QURNVENT

4:17:38 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:17 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 04/ 02/ 13 2: 07 P. M



